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CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel). .. I'd like to call to order the Council's Budget and Finance
Committee meeting for November 15, 2005. For the record, we have an, in attendance
this afternoon Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, Mateo, Molina, Pontanilla. Excused
from this afternoon's proceedings is Council member Carroll, Councilmember Hokama,
and Member Tavares. And we have been told that Member Tavares will be on her way
later on in the meeting. She had some personal things to attend to. She'll be here.
Thank you, Members. We have a full agenda, as you can see. So before we get started,
I'd like to provide the opportunity for public testimony. Is anybody here signed up, staff?
MS. SAKAMOTO: No, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, in the interest of time, we'll go ahead and leave it open for
another 10 or 15 minutes or so, and then if we catch back up to it, we'll take care of that
item.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No objection.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: ... (laughter) . ..
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. I did catch that, Mr. Mateo. No objections, thank you.
Members, as I stated, we have a lot of items on the agenda today, so thank you for your
cooperation in advance in trying to move forward with the agenda items for discussion.

ITEM NO. 57:

AMENDING FY 2006 BUDGET (EP COUNT, DEPARTMENT OF
MANAGEMENT) (C.c. No. 05-343)

CHAIR KANE: First, I'd like to direct your attention to Item No. 57, amending the Fiscal Year
2006 Budget, the EP count, Department of Management. Members, the Committee is in
receipt of County Communication No. 05-343 from the Managing Director, transmitting
a proposed bill entitled, "A Bill for an Ordinance Amending the Fiscal Year '06 Budget
for the County of Maui as it Pertains to the Department of Management". The purpose of
the proposed bill is to increase the Equivalent Personnel or EP count in the Management
Information Systems Program, Department of Management, from 20 to 24.
Members, we're here to consider whether to recommend passage of the proposed bill on
first reading as the recommendation from this Committee with or without revisions. A
couple of notes before we begin the discussion, Members. First, the EP count was
decreased when Council revised the appropriation amounts for positions for three Data
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Processing Systems Analysts III positions and a Clerk III position from eight months to
six months, if you folks recall that discussion.
Unfortunately, it appears that four EPs were inadvertently deleted along with that
adjustment from eight months to six months, so it consequently brought it from 24 down
to 20. And we are here to put it back up to the 24 so that the MIS Division of the
Management Office can hire the, they anticipate hiring in January of '06, which is up this
coming January.
Members, at this time, I'd like to provide an opportunity to introduce the Finance
Director who is here on behalf of the Administration to introduce our new Budget
Director. So, Mr. Kalbert Young, you have the floor.
MR. YOUNG: Thank you very much, Mr. Chair, and good afternoon to you and to the Members
of the Committee. On behalf of the Administration, I'm very happy to be here today to
announce and present the new County Budget Director, Mr. Lloyd Ginoza. I know it's
been a while since, since the departing of our last Budget Director, and I thank you for
your indulgence and patience on behalf of the Administration.
Mr. Ginoza served as the County Auditor in the Department of Finance, and I've had the
op ... , the great opportunity to work with him over the course of a last year and a half or so
during my tenure. I'm very confident in Mr. Ginoza's ability as the Budget Director.
We're very sad to have been without his services now for the Finance Department, but
very pleased that he'll get to serve the Administration and all of you in regards to the
Budget.
Thank you very much, Mr. Chair, and I welcome Mr. Ginoza. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Good afternoon, Mr. Ginoza. Would you like to provide any opening remarks
to the Committee? General comments or anything specific to the specific item that we
have listed on our agenda, Mr. Ginoza?
MR. GINOZA: I don't have any specific items, but I'd like to just say that, you know, this past
couple weeks has been a very trying learning period, and I hope to continue to learn as
much as I can so I can be as efficient as I can. So I, in the meantime, I ask for your
patience.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Ginoza. And, Members, the Chair recognizes the presence of
our Vice-Chair of the Committee, Mr. Hokama. Good afternoon, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: '" (inaudible) ... Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Okay, Members, again, we are on Item No. 57, amending the
Fiscal Year '06 Budget for EP count. Mr. Ginoza, if you can introduce your resource
persons, Mr. Verkerke. And, Mr. Verkerke, do you have any opening comments, please?
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MR. VERKERKE: Good afternoon, Chair. Good afternoon, Members. I believe in your
introduction, you pretty much got to the crux of the matter here that it is mostly a
correction and production error of the paperwork for this document. I don't believe
there's a whole lot of discussion that hasn't taken place already during the budget process
earlier in the year that I hope to clarify. But I'll be happy to answer any questions that
you have.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Members, we have before us that Bill for an Ordinance, and before
the Chair makes any type of recommendation, I'll open the floor for any questions or
comments in this area. Members? Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. So why don't you give us the history then,
Mr. Verkerke, because here we are six months in the budget year and now you're asking
for this adjustment. So can I assume you can continue to operate with the current head
count?
MR. VERKERKE: The result of the budget deliberations earlier in the year was that four
expansion positions were funded for six months for the MIS Division. So I wouldn't
have had any funding to hire anybody in the past four plus months of this Fiscal Year.
st
The funding would only be available starting January 1 . We have made some
preparations and we have to go through some administrative processes because the
addition of these functions resulted in a slight reorganization of the Division. And we
have completed the process of union consultation. So we're hoping that if we can start
the process of recruitment for these positions we will have the ability to start new staff
early in the new calendar year. And I'm hopeful that this Bill will give us the ability to
indeed bring the people on board.
We would very much be helped by the additional staff. There are many tasks that at the
present are poorly or not at all attended to, and we're hoping to rectify that with the new
positions.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, I'm trying to recall during our budget review. Any of these
four positions has any impact by what Police Department is doing and their computer
system?
MR. VERKERKE: Not at all. The Police Department has positions for supporting their own IT
project and their own IT needs.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So none of these would be used to serVIce Police Department
requirements or requests?
MR. VERKERKE: I don't want to say not at all. Indirectly, of course, it's hard to completely
separate MIS functions as provided by my Division and those by the Police IT staff.
There is lot of interconnectivity between systems and networks. So they will have a
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function in supporting the overall environment that the Police Department is part of also.
But nothing specific for their own internal network support or
support.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh, uh-huh. Okay, thank you. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, any further questions? Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you very much, Chair. So the appropriation that
is noted for four equivalent personnel, is that number $319,838?
MR. VERKERKE: I'll defer to Mr. Ginoza for the exact ... (inaudible) ...
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: And would that be for, I guess, the six-month period,
starting from January 1st to June 30 th ?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ginoza?
MR. GINOZA: The four positions, the total is 66,516.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: ... (inaudible) ... ?
MR. GINOZA: ... (inaudible) ... for 2006.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions for Mr. Ginoza or Mr. Verkerke regarding this item?
Hearing none, Members, the Chair's recommendation is to move forward the Bill for an
Ordinance amending the Fiscal Year '06 Budget for the County of Maui as it pertains to
the Department of Management.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second
CHAIR KANE: Okay, it's moved and seconded, Members Hokama and Molina. Discussion?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No further discussion, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, hearing none, I believe we can also incorporate a filing. Members,
without objections, we can incorporate the filing of this Communication into the motion
on the floor?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. Further discussion? Hearing none, all in favor say "aye".
-5-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

November 15, 2005

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: Opposed? Let the record show it's unanimous. Members Carroll and Tavares
excused.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, Mateo, Molina, Pontanilla,
Vice-Chair Hokama, and Chair Kane.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Carroll and Tavares.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending FIRST READING of bill and FILING of
communication.

CHAIR KANE: Mr. Verkerke, thank you very much. Appreciate it. Okay, Members, thank
you.

ITEM NO. 47:

SALARIES OF DEPUTIES CORPORATION COUNSEL
DEPUTIES PROSECUTING ATTORNEY (C.c. No. 05-304)

AND

CHAIR KANE: We're moving forward to the next item on your agenda, Budget and Finance
Item No. 47, salaries of Deputy Corporation Counsel and Deputies for Prosecuting
Attorney.
I believe we do have our Prose ... , our lead Prosecuting Attorney and our lead Corporation
Counsel people available for discussion this afternoon. Members, I'll direct your
attention to that item. We do have in receipt County Communication No. 05-304 from
the Corporation Counsel and the Prosecuting Attorney, transmitting a proposed bill
entitled, "A Bill for an Ordinance Amending Section 2.44.015, Maui County Code,
Relating to Salaries of Deputies Corporation Counsel and Deputies Prosecuting
Attorney" . And the purpose of the proposed bill is to update the Maui County Code
provisions pertaining to the annual salary of deputies in their respective departments.
Members, as some side notes, for your information, on August 1, 2005, the Salary
Commission voted to reclassify the positions of Corporation Counsel and First Deputy
effectively giving them salary increases. Section 2.44.015 of the Code states that "When
the Salary Commission adjusts the salaries of Corporation Counselor the Prosecuting
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Attorney, the Corporation Counsel and the Prosecuting Attorney shall transmit to the
Council their recommendations regarding salary plans for their deputies in their
respective departments."
I will, at this point in time, Members, without objections, recognize first, I believe, since
he's closer to the mike, Mr. Brian Moto from Corporation Counsel for his opening
comments. Mr. Moto?
MR. MOTO: Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman and Members, and thank you for your opening
summary. I did accompany this agenda item along with the Prosecuting Attorney with a
brief letter that describes the purpose of this bill and the reasons for it. As the Chair
noted, the Salary Commission in August, changed the salary for the Corporation Counsel
and First Deputy Corporation Counsel so that now I'm paid the same as the Prosecuting
Attorney and the Water Supply Director and the Public Works Director I guess it is.
Prior to that or since the early '90s the Corp. Counsel was paid less than those positions.
So now they're the same, and, and that change was made retroactive by the Salary
Commission to July 1, 2005.
Another, the second point that is made by my September, by our September 27, 2005
letter to Mr. Hokama as Council Chair is that it was brought to our attention--and I thank
Mr. Fukuoka for helping us to keep abreast of these things--it was brought to our
attention that the civil service pay scales that are applicable to civil service lawyers in the
State Judiciary were changed as a result of collective bargaining. And under the existing
pay scale or pay scheme that is reflected in the Maui County Code, that pay scale has
been described in earlier memoranda issued to you, oh, in the past one to two years. In
those memoranda it has been explained that the pay scale is based upon, essentially
taking a high figure and a low figure. The high figure being the Salary Commission's
pay for the head of department and then the bottom being based upon a review of the pay
that's applicable to civil service lawyers. And, actually, the lowest number in that, in the
Maui County Code pay scale is the, the step that's just above, the one step that's just
above the very lowest step on the civil service ranking. And that was done in order to
recognize the fact that there are differences between the civil service lawyer position and
a, an appointed position.
Ms. Tengan, the Prosecuting Attorney, and I did consult in the preparation of the letter
and the bill. It is my understanding that this bill is identical or will have pay scales that
are identical to those being proposed by your Office of Council Services. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Tengan, do you have any additional comments for the body
this afternoon? Thank you.
MS. TENGAN: Not at this time, but I'll be happy to try and answer any questions.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, we have the bill before us. Any questions for either
Ms. Tengan or Mr. Moto with respects to this bill? Ms. Anderson?
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I guess this question would be for
Mr. Moto. Mr. Moto, the step increases of 3.5 percent, the increase, that is for all of the
Corporation Counsels and Prosecuting Attorneys, except the Corporation Counsel and
First Deputy Corporation Counsel? Is that correct?
MR. MOTO: Mr. Chairman, the three and a half percent figure is actually the percentage figure
that is the result of collective bargaining agreement, and that's the percentage figure
that's being applied to the civil service pay scales. And so we basically looked at that in
adjusting, we, in adjusting the low end of our Maui County Code pay scale, because, as I
said, the lowest figure is based upon the civil service pay scales. In other words, the
County Code salary schedule changes if there is a push up or a pull up. A pull up
meaning if the Salary Commission has acted to raise the boss's salary or if collective
bargaining agreements have pushed up the pay for civil service lawyers. That's the
theory behind the--I think it's the nine or ten steps, ten steps I guess it is--that you see in
the bill.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so those would be all the attorneys other than
Corporation Counsel and First Deputy Corporation Counsel?
MR. MOTO: Yes, there are increases for all of the years of serv ... , actually it's not years of
service. It's the years since, since admission to the bar. And if you want to know how
those individual steps are calculated, they're just, the, I think they're just equal steps. We
just took the high and the low and made ten equal steps.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
already exist, right?

Well, don't those ten equal steps already exist? They

MR. MOTO: Oh, yeah, you mean the scheme? Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. And so those steps are just all being increased by
3.5 percent?
MR. MOTO: I don't, I don't think it mathematically works out that way.
other words, if you
took last year's, I mean the current schedule, which is in the brackets, I'm not sure
mathematically it works out that it's 3 percent on, for each step. In fact, it can't be
because, as I said, there are two factors at work here. There's, there's the adjustment that
the Salary Commission made to my salary and then there's that collective bargaining
increase. And so you have both ends of the range being changed, and all we did was find
the high and the low and then carve that up into ten, into these little equal steps. So
mathematically I don't think it necessarily comes out to 3.5 percent times each of the
existing steps.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So is it somehow a, reflective of both the Salary
Commission increase at the top and the bargaining units increase from the bottom?
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MR. MOTO: Yes, the new proposed salary schedule is a combination of all those factors.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you for that. And then could you tell me what
the current salary for the Deputy Corporation, Corporation Counsel and First Deputy
Corporation Counsel?
MR. MOTO: Oh, let's see.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: In other words, we're increasing it from what?
MR. MOTO: Oh, yes, my current salary since the Salary Commission took its action this year is
89,640, and the First Deputy is paid now 85,320.
CHAIR KANE: Member Anderson, if I may, that's located on the document that's-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm looking at it right now, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Okay. August 31 st letter, second to the last page of the, in the packet.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So the Salary Commission's increase has already been
implemented? It doesn't need this bill?
MR. MOTO: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Any further questions? Hearing none, Members,
the Chair's recommendation is to move forward as a recommendation to the full Council
the bill that's listed under Budget and Finance Item No. 47, along with the filing of
County Communication 05-304.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR KANE: Moved and seconded by Members Hokama and Molina. Weare in discussion.
Members, any discussion on this Item? Hearing none, all in favor signify by saying
"aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: Opposed? Let the record show unanimous approval with Members Tavares,
Carroll excused from the vote.
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VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, Mateo, Molina, Pontanilla,
Vice-Chair Hokama, and Chair Kane.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Carroll and Tavares.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending FIRST READING of bill and FILING of
communication.

CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Members. Mr. Moto, Ms. Tengan, thank you for your presence this
afternoon.

ITEM NO. 46:

SALARIES OF PERSONNEL IN THE OFFICE OF COUNCIL
SERVICES (C.C. No. 05-303)

CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, we're moving on to Item No.3, which is Budget and Finance
Item No. 46, salaries of personnel in the Office of Council Services. We have the
Director of the Office, Mr. Ken Fukuoka, here to provide us with some opening remarks.
And while he heads down, we have via County Communication No. 05-303 from the
Council Chair, the correspondence that's dated August 10, 2005 from our Director,
transmitting "A Bill for an Ordinance Amending Section 2.08.060, Maui County Code,
Relating to Salaries of Personnel in the Office of Council Services and other Council
Staff". And the purpose of the proposed bill, Members, is to update the Maui County
Code provisions pertaining to the salary plan for employees of the Council and the Office
of Council Services.
Just a note, Members, the salary plan for legislative employees who are exempt from
collective bargaining is based on the salary schedules negotiated for County employees
who are represented by labor organizations. And the 3.5 increase effective 10/1105 just
last month and another 3.5 increase effective October 1 of '06.
Good afternoon, Mr. Fukuoka. You have the floor.
MR. FUKUOKA: Good afternoon, Chair and Members of the Committee. This is a proposal, as
the Chair indicated, to update the salary scales applicable to the employees of the Office
of Council Services and also the Council aides. The Executive Assistants in the
individual offices of the Council Members don't have a salary scale. They are limited by
the overall appropriation to each, for allocation I should say, to each Members' office.
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The proposal is consistent with the underlying basis for the salaries of each of the
positions in the office. For all of the positions, except the Legislative Attorney positions,
the adjustments are based on collective bargaining adjustments. The specific numbers
became available in August and that's the reason why we're doing it at this point, rather
than just before the budget was finalized last time around.
For Legislative Attorneys, it matches the salary scale for the other, for the legal
departments of the County, as was just explained. That's it. I'm glad to entertain
questions.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any questions for the Director? Seeing none, Members,
the Chair's recommendation is to pass out--I'm sorry, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm sorry, Mr. Chairman. I do have a question, but-CHAIR KANE: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --maybe Mr. Fukuoka can answer it, but it is a question
from our Chair's letter. Do you have a copy of that, Mr. Fukuoka? It's September 13.
MR. FUKUOKA: Yes, I do.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Third paragraph, where he's talking about adjustments to
offset the effects of inflation. Then he says, please be advised that I intend to transfer
funds internally so that Council Members can consider appropriate adjustment to the
offices' expenditures as of October 1. Could you explain that?
MR. FUKUOKA: Yes, because there is no salary scale for the staff in the individual Members'
offices, the Members are forced to use whatever the allocation is to fund their staffs'
salaries. There is an Adjustments Account that's set aside, an allocation, if you will, set
aside in the Office of Council Services' budget that is used to supplement the individual
allowance account or individual accounts, as well as the Members' salaries if the Salary
Commission were to change the salary. So there is an amount that's budgeted there.
What happens, what has happened in the past is that when the, when the salary levels for
the Council, I mean for our Office are approved, then that establishes a percent increase
that is then used as the basis for a transfer from the adjustment account into the individual
accounts so that if the Member wishes, the Member can offer a similar adjustment to the
Member's staff.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So are we talking-CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Are we talking a 3.5 percent increase also?
MR. FUKUOKA: It would be three point ... well, that is up to the Chair, but in the past, it
would have been 3.5 percent for nine months out of 12. But, as I said, you know, it's
little, we don't face this issue until we get a solid reading on the actual increase that's
being adopted for the staff salaries. You know, until that happens, it's something that
normally we would not initiate.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But are you saying that in this fund, it would be fair to
assume that if Members wanted to increase their staff salary equivalent to Council
Service staff increase, that this fund would provide the monies to individual Members'
offices for that purpose?
MR. FUKUOKA: Right. If the Council and specifically the Council Chair were to go in that
direction as has happened in the past, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. FUKUOKA: That would happen.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you very much for that clarification.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any additional questions? At some point, and I don't know, I
don't mean to put our Council Chair on the spot, but being that Member Anderson asked
the question regarding the third paragraph of the letter that was sent by our Chair, in the
second sentence, advising the body or the Council Members that there is an intention to
have funds transferred internally, so I just wanted to be, clarification from the Chair. But
as far as from the comments of the Director, the actual transferred dollar amount has yet
to be determined. Is that correct? And, again, just to get some more solid information for
the body's anticipation of this adjustment.
And I don't know if our Chair would like to respond, or he can provide the floor to
Mr. Fukuoka to respond. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. The letter to you and the Members, Mr. Chairman, just
clearly points out the direction that the Chair's office was going in regards to salary
adjustments. Already we've taken care of Prosecuting Attorney's Office and the
Corporation Counsel's Office. As we are well aware, we also have attorney's on our
Council Services staff, and Mr. Fukuoka did his rightful due diligence in reviewing our
employees' pay schedules as well as should there be adjustments in the individual
Members' accounts.
By past practice, by previous Chair's, it is, it was my intention to continue that practice to
allow each Member to have their responsible adjustments under their discretion within
their office allocation. So, we'll make those, you know, Mr. Fukuoka can verify whether
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or not we completed the transfers, but it would be up to each Member to decide whether
or not they want to do their increases or not. They can, they can stand at the same
number and they can increase by a percentages. I'm sure they'll do their own due
diligence with their individual employees, Mr. Chairman. So that's my only comments.
I will leave it to the discretion of the Member within their own office ... (CHANGE
TAPE) ...
CHAIR KANE: Thank you for your additional remarks.
remarks as well?

Mr. Fukuoka, you had additional

MR. FUKUOKA: Yes, I was searching for the figure. My estimate is 23, $2,700, and please
remember that that is for nine months out of the year. So it isn't much, you know. I
mean, but, to be fair, that's the adjustment that we project.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. Members-MR. FUKUOKA: I'm sorry. I have to say, you know, it is subject to the Chair's discretion in
the end, but that's just the way it's been done in the past.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Fukuoka. Any final questions before the Chair makes a
recommendation? Hearing none, Members, the Chair recommends moving forward on
Budget Item 46, the Bill for an ordinance that is listed under the Item, along with filing of
County Communication Number 05-303, as the recommendation to the full Council.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So moved, Mr. Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second.
CHAIR KANE: It's moved and seconded by Members Hokama and Molina. We're m
discussion. Hearing no discussion, Members, all in favor signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: Opposed? Let the record show it's unanimous with Members Carroll and
Tavares excused from the vote.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, Mateo, Molina, Pontanilla,
Vice-Chair Hokama, and Chair Kane.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.
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EXC.:

Councilmembers Carroll and Tavares.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending FIRST READING of bill and FILING of
communication.

CHAIR KANE: Mr. Fukuoka, thank you very much for your presence this afternoon.
MR. FUKUOKA: Thank you.

ITEM NO. 50:

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR MEDICARE PART D
DRUG PLAN SUBSIDIES (C.c. No. 05-306)

CHAIR KANE:
Members, we're moving forward to Budget Item Number 50,
Intergovernmental Agreement for the Medicare Part D drug plan subsidies. And I
apologize, but before we have the Director and Deputy Director approach, I've been
asked, respectfully by Member Tavares, who will be in our meeting this afternoon, she's
asked, she has some questions in this area, and she asked if we would consider moving
this item further back in the calendar and that we'll have a discussion later on during this
meeting because she just needed some clarity and was unable to make it because of a
doctor's appointment. So I wanted to honor that and ask that, Members, if you have no
objections, I'd like to move this particular item. Instead of talking about this item, I'd
like to just move on to the next item, BF-60. Any objections?
COMMITTEE MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you very much. Members, some housekeeping. We don't have
anybody signed up to testify. It's a little after two. And because nobody is here to
testify, without objections, we'll go ahead and close testimony for this afternoon's
meeting.
COMMITTEE MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you very much. Testimony is closed for this meeting.

ITEM NO. 60:

AMENDING FY 2005 BOND ORDINANCE (CENTRAL MAUl LAND
ACQUISITION AND EPA CONSENT DECREE COMPLIANCE) (C.c. No. 05-346)

CHAIR KANE: Members, if I can direct your attention to Budget Item, Budget and Finance
Item No. 60. This is amending the Fiscal Year 2005 Bond Ordinance for Central Maui
Land Acquisition and EPA Consent Decree Compliance.
Members, the Committee is in receipt of County Communication No. 05-346 from the
Managing Director, transmitting a proposed bill entitled "A Bill for an Ordinance
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Amending Ordinance Number 3184, Bill No. 30 of 2004, Relating to the Issuance of
General Obligation Bonds of the County of Maui".
Members, the purpose of the proposed bill is to increase the General Obligation Bond
authorization by $1.2 million, which was submitted to us--there has been an adjustment,
and I'll get to that shortly, Members--for the Central Maui Land Acquisition, WailukuKahului Community Plan district, and by $1 million for the EPA Consent Decree
Compliance countywide for a total bond principal amount not to exceed a total of
$17,165,000.
Members, a couple of notes before we open the floor and provide Mr. Ginoza, as well as
the Mayor's assistant, Mr. Dave DeLeon, who is with us this afternoon on some opening
remarks. The Fiscal Year '05 Budget Ordinance included an appropriation from bond
funds for $1.2 million for Central Maui Land Acquisition and $1 million for the, for EPA
Consent Decree Compliance from bond funds. The bond authorization for these Fiscal
Year '05 CIP projects was withheld because additional information was necessary to
justify the project.
Additional note, we did, staff went ahead and went back into the minutes of the meeting
during this discussion which was the 2004, which is our previous term, and was under the
direction of then Budget Chair Hokama. This was an April 14th meeting that we had
where the discussion took place regarding these two items--both the Central Maui Land
Acquisition, as well as the EPA Consent Decree Compliance discussion.
The Committee Reports that came out did discuss that until we had further information
that we were willing to move forward on the actual ordinance but were withholding the
bond authorization until we had more information. And so hopefully today we're going
to have that information provided to us. And so we'll break down the discussion into the
two items, that land acquisition as well as the EPA Consent Decree.
Members, the First Deputy Corporation Counsel will provide the Committee with a
revised proposed bill, and I believe that has just been handed out to you for your perusal.
And the Bill will be to reduce the Central Maui Land Acquisition from $1.2 million to
$500,000 because the Waihee Ball Field is the only property that will be acquired by the
end of this calendar year. Keep in mind the bond has an 18-month life. This was done
during the 'OS Fiscal Year Budget, and so July 1st, '04, and here we are at the end of '05.
So we're at the 1i h of 18 months of this possibility, so we're here to have that discussion.
It will lapse at the end of this year.
Finally, Members, before I open the floor, and thank you. I just want to set the
groundwork so you folks have information to and set the context of the discussion. We
do, will not or we did not provide the map. The map was a rather huge map with all little
colors and everything. That was provided for us during the discussion a year and a half
ago, but we are here to just discuss the Waihee Ball Park because that's the only item.
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There was also a list that was provided to us. It listed all the items in the $1.2 million
project, but, again, they're here only to discuss the adjustment, which is the 500,000.
Members, I think we already approved the Waihee Ball Park purchase, and so we're here
to talk about the funds now. With that, Members, we'll provide opportunity for
Mr. Ginoza to provide some opening remarks and also we'll provide, since Mr. DeLeon
is sitting with us this afternoon, an opportunity to first discuss the Central Maui Land
Acquisition revised ordinance that is before you now. Mr. Ginoza, opening remarks
please.
MR. GINOZA: Thank you, Mr. Chair, Members. Thank you for your detailed background on
this issue. I'd like to separate this issue into two parts, the first being the Waihee Ball
Park, and of course the EPA Consent Decree Compliance.
With regard to the Waihee Ball Park, that is the only purchase that's been identified in
the 1.2 million appropriation that was done in the '05 Budget. Negotiations and
approvals and approval of the purchase for the Waihee Ball Park, as mentioned by the
Chair, has been approved by the Council and have been completed for a purchase price of
449,000 plus closing costs for an estimated total of 453,000.
We are requesting or proposing an amendment to the Fiscal Year 2005 Bond Ordinance
to authorize the increase of General Obligation Bonds of 500,000, and to include such
amount for this purchase in the disposition of bonds to complete the transaction.
Do you have any questions?
CHAIR KANE: Okay, and before we entertain those, Mr. Ginoza--Mr. DeLeon, any additional
comments? We're going to separate that, Mr., yeah. We'll separate it. We'll talk about
the Ball Field first. Thank you.
MR. DeLEON: Thank you. Good afternoon. Yeah, we were, moving toward closure of
this ... (inaudible) ... into the final stages of escrow when we realized that this
authorization had not been achieved. And so we took a deep breath and stepped
backwards and here we are.
The, yeah, essentially it's the same facts that existed when we came to the Parks
Committee. It's a 1.8 piece, 1.8 acre piece of property at the intersection there at Waihee.
It's the only park and active park in the area. It's well used by the school, local churches,
and the community came out in support of the acquisition.
The price has not changed. All of it is basically the same. In reference to the other, other
possible acquisitions, I was only tasked to acquire this piece of property. I understand
that the Waiale properties that go along the Old Cane Haul Road are in negotiations for
being donated, so we thought at one point we were going to have to pay money for 'em
and it doesn't seem to be that case at the time. Public Works has kind of slowed that
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down because of the debate over Saint Anthony's issues that they'd want to take a deep
breath and make sure they have as much information as possible before they brought that
to the Committee.
There's a piece of property in Waikapu we were looking at but that was assumed into a
sale of a larger lot and it needs to be subdivided. It can be subdivided while in the
process of being sold and the new owner has promised us to corne back to us with, so
that'll corne back in the future.
And it was way too late in the game when I realized that the Saint Anthony's--what is it
called?--that the Clubhouse property was also part of this equation. I didn't realize that
until, until it was too late to do anything about it really. And probably that would've
required the rest of the money in this account just to do that.
With that, I'll give, I'll get back to the Chair, and thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. DeLeon. Members, the floor is open for questions to
Mr. Ginoza or Mr. DeLeon regarding the Waihee Ball Park, or if you have any other
questions in this area. Okay, again, Members, we have a revised bill for the 500,000.
Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. For the Waihee Ball Park, will we
have enough time to encumber the funds once we approve this thing?
MR. DeLEON: Yeah, we're ready to close.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. DeLEON: So all we need is, we need the authorization to be able to have the money to
close. But outside of that, we're ready to close. I've actually been really giving the
escrow company a hard time pushing it to get it closed and then to find out I didn't have
any money.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So it's going to get done by the end of the year, then?
MR. DeLEON: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, any further questions, Members? I was just asking staff a sidebar
question, why not 455 instead of a round figure of 5? And we may have some additional
costs that aren't anticipated, so we're just making sure that they don't have to corne back
for something as, that may be considered minute, if you will. So the proposal is for half a
million dollars versus the 1.2 for the Waihee Ball Park.
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Any additional questions or comments in this area, Members? Okay, thank you very
much. Mr. DeLeon, you folks are ready to provide any opening remarks regarding the
EPA Consent Decree? Mr. Ginoza?
MR. GINOZA: Mr. Chair, I see representatives from Public Works.
CHAIR KANE: Good. If we can have the Deputy Director--who I see in the audience--come
forward, as well as maybe Mr. Krueger? I see him, as well, as a reference with the
Deputy. He can provide us with some comments if necessary. Mr. Miyamoto, good
afternoon.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Good afternoon, Mr. Chair. Regarding the EPA Consent Decree
Compliance of 100, the $1 million bond float, the, the EPA Consent Decree Compliance
projects are projects that are developed to, in the essence of spill prevention to meet, to
comply with the Consent Decree. As part of that project, there is, as part of this project
there are, there is one project of particular interest that's required by the Consent Decree
that's going to be included in this $1 million to fund. It's a project that does investigation
into the existing gravity flow system and the pump stations. It's to develop a dynamic
model that will simulate the flows in the pipes so that, let's say, a new development were
proposed, we could go ahead and use this model to see what impacts this, this
development may have regionally. Whether it just impacts our gravity line or if it
impacts the pump stations, or if it impacts the plant. So those types of projects are the
projects that are included for the $1 million bond float.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, before I open it up for question, I'll just ask the Deputy one
overall question. Do you have anything in writing to provide the Committee with a
breakdown of the projects that will be impacted by this $1 million request for bond
authorization?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Mr. Chair, yes, we did provide the new Budget Director with a list of
projects that we have that's pretty much slated for this $1 million. We do have about
$181,000 that's still uncommitted, so to speak, assigned to a project. But we feel that we
can't commit this 181,000 because in this current construction industry, I mean, our
projects are coming in much higher. For example, we have the Molokai force main
replacement project that had $1 million for, for construction, and the, part of that money
was used to do additional investigative work for this construction project. And the bids
came in well over a million dollars. So there is the, the ability to encumber this money
by the end of the year.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. Members, we'll open it up. Mr. Hokama, recognized.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I think your request to have a breakdown so we can
understand how they arrived at the $1 million would be appreciated. Second, Deputy
Director, can you tell us this afternoon where we are in regards to completing and
fulfilling all of the requirements of the Compliance Decree. Are we 50 percent done?
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Ninety-nine percent done? Is this the last request we're going to see for sewer EPA
Compliance requirements?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Mr. Chair, if I might, Scott Rollins is the Acting Division Chief for the
Wastewater Division. I'll let Scott provide you with a response. He's more familiar with
that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. If you can, please identify yourself for the record please?
MR. ROLLINS: Good afternoon, Chair, Council Members. My name is Scott Rollins. I'm the
Acting Division Chief for Wastewater Reclamation Division. As far as the Consent
Decree is concerned, we're probably, I would say maybe 75 percent complete with all the
requirements within that document. We still have further investigation to accomplish in
the next two years as well as scheduling any rehab or replacement of sewer lines that we
find are in disrepair.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we heard 75 percent, and we have two more years to meet full
compliance of the Decree? Is that how-MR. ROLLINS: Um-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Would that be an accurate understanding on our part of what you
just shared?
MR. ROLLINS: Not quite accurate. We have certain programs within the Consent Decree that
have deadlines. I can think of two off the top of my head that we have a deadline in
2007, and another in 2008 for further investigation.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And you, at this time, have no estimate, financial requirements to
achieve those goals?
MR. ROLLINS: In putting together the budget for next year, we're looking at projects for rehab
that are connected with the Consent Decree. We need to do further investigation in the
next year-and-a-half on other sewer lines to determine if there's other work that needs to
be done.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Couple more questions, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Proceed.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Let me get to the nuts and bolts first. This debt will be paid back by
special funds as it relates to the sewer program?
MR. ROLLINS: Yeah, it's the user fees that'll end up paying the debt service.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And, therefore, the current fee schedule under the sewer
program and those that may be recommending in the upcoming budget takes all of these
points into account?
MR. ROLLINS: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, because we had a lively discussion, I believe last budget
review, Mr. Chairman, where we asked the same hard questions and what we were told
about the fee structure gave cause for some of us to question whether or not it
could ... {inaudible} ... requirements and debt service. And so I just bring that up again
that, you know, everybody is watching. Not only our residents--although they're our
consumer, they're our residents--all of us here who pay sewer fees too so I just ask that.
The one thing I want to follow up now on my fourth point is what the Deputy Director
said regarding some of the monitoring. This is a system-wide compliance requirement on
the Division's part regarding gravity flow, force mains, pump stations, collection points?
Is that a good understanding on our part?
MR. ROLLINS: Yes, it's a study for the whole island of Maui and the collection systems in
Lahaina and Kihei and Wailuku and Kahului.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Is this separate from the relocation of the Central Maui Plant to a
potential other site? Is this included in this plant or is a total separate proposal?
MR. ROLLINS: They are separate.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Can you tell me why we're keeping it separate since lot of the
factors in this proposal would impact whether or not Members like us sitting here would
agree to relocate the plant and to what degree and what cost?
MR. ROLLINS: As you probably know, all the flows now are conveyed to the site of the
Wailuku-Kahului plant, and we feel that if the plant is relocated that will become a major
pump station site, everything will then be transferred from that point to the new plant. So
anything involved in the study would be valid still.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And when do you anticipate doing this portion of your
request? In the next two months?
MR. ROLLINS: I'm sorry, which portion?
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm trying to understand--you guys go on, you guys want CIP
money, bond money to do this study. I'm trying to understand how you're using CIP
money to do a monitoring project or, you know, debt service money.
MR. ROLLINS: Okay, part of the Consent Decree is to evaluate our system and determine what
needs to be repaired or replaced-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That part, I understand. My question is whether or not you're using
appropriate funds to do the job. When we look at borrowing money as _ _ CIP, Capital
Improvement Projects, that is one thing. But operations, maintenance does not come
from bond money or CIP funds. And that's what I'm trying to find out. If part of this
million is legitimately bond money, CIP, under that jurisdiction--or should this be part of
coming through your operational expense and paid for by your sewer fees?
MR. GINOZA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ginoza?
MR. GINOZA: A copy of the project's, you know, detailed project has been circulated among
the Members. And if I can point to the summary section, basically out of the 815,000
that was, is encumbered, the construction project is about 247,000. And there's design
contracts of 569,000.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama, you do have the floor.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you, Chairman. I'm, I was just trying to add up quickly
Mr. Ginoza's comments on those two points. So let's say what we're looking at,
725,000, round numbers, give or take 10,000 more or less, and you want another quartermillion dollars for contingency because of the construction bidding environment. Is that
what we're to understand?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ginoza, if you can clarify perhaps the summary area. If you can just walk
through so we have the dollar amounts understood and then we can respond to
Mr. Hokama's question about the unencumbered amounts. And then follow up with
Mr. Miyamoto's comments about using that for, what the intention of that by the end of
the year is going to be. I think that was the comment, yeah, Mr. Hokama, he said earlier?
So you're following up with that?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
MR. GINOZA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. On the top of the page, basically, it's the summary of the
different projects that were being done. And that total, if you look at the top third of the
page, comes out to 815,000. And if you look at the middle part of the page, they're
trying to summarize the 815,000 into construction and design amounts. And, yes, the
total encumbered so far is 815,643. And according to the Deputy, you know, there's
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going to be other contracts that's going to be for the EPA projects that would be
encumbering the balance of the 815,000 to the million dollars.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm trying to get the last part of your statement, Mr. Ginoza. I'm
trying to understand that. Can you restate that please?
MR. GINOZA: Okay, the 815,000 has-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, I know how they arrived at that, and I understand design
versus construction.
MR. GINOZA: --that's construction design cost incurred up to date.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. GINOZA: So for the balance for the difference between the 815,000 and a million,
according to the Director, there's other EPA contr. .. , other EPA projects that would
encumber that difference. In other words, there's other contracts that may be let out that
could encumber the EPA contract, I mean, EPA appropriation.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
authorized by the Council?

And all of these other EPA projects have already been

MR. GINOZA: I'll have to defer to the Director.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Miyamoto?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Thank you. The additional 185,000 is that, as I mentioned before, is pretty
much the project we're looking to utilize it in is for the Kaunakakai force main, which
was previously approved and it had a $1 million budget. And, unfortunately, the bidding
has come in much higher.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So saying that, Mr. Deputy Director, and knowing how you and
some of your sister departments are having difficulty getting reasonable bids on projects
because of the current environment, would it be a bad misunderstanding on our part to
think that you would then scratch certain projects because it couldn't go forward because
of insufficient funding and that you would ask for have those funds transferred to take
care those projects that need to go forward instead of borrowing more money and just
taking from existing projects in doing your prioritization? And go with what you can?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Miyamoto?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Yes, I guess for the Wastewater Division, it, because of the Consent Decree
and the need to prevent spills and incur fines, and the Wastewater Division pretty much
has a system that's set up so that they do a lot of the planning, they do the design. They

- 22-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

November 15,2005

try to space a lot of these projects out so that they can prioritize these appropriately. Just
in recent years, I guess the past two or three years, the construction overprice has caught
us by surprise. And, yes, we are trying to look to, to, you know, prioritize which projects
can be delayed so we can come out with a more even CIP budget. And, but the ones, the
projects that we had identified were pretty much identified in a previous work,
investigative work. And they demonstrated that we had sewerline pipe joints that were
out of alignment so, and the same sewerline was running under a household, four
households. So it automatically became priority so that we don't have to pay damages to
the houses. And another line, which was done on Nihoa Street, that was, in trying to
coordinate with our Engineering Division on resurfacing, we delayed the resurfacing of
that roadway because we knew that concrete sewerline was sort of questionable because
we had just done Kanaloa and Kanaloa--was a similar pipe material and age. We made a
really quick investigation of other concrete pipelines and determined that that Nihoa
Street really needs to go because we don't want to be digging up the resurfaced roadway
in about a year or two. So we tried to prioritize.
The Lahaina Pump Station 4 is pretty old. It hasn't been renovated in about 20, 30 years.
Weare doing the Lahaina 5 and 6, which was approved, which would decrease the flow
to the Lahaina 4, so it gave us the opportunity to downsize that pump station. And given
it's age, we are looking to downsize it, and that's what the engineers are designing--a
downsized pump station. The generator had gone out just recently, so we realized we had
to replace that. So that was added to the design.
And the Kahului Pump Station is in the original equipment. It has from the 19, early
1970's, it has the original equipment. It doesn't quite meet the safety requirements. The
gentlemen that inspect that pump station daily have to shimmy down a vertical ladder
with a line attached to them so that they can meet the OSHA requirements. So we're
looking to redo that pump station.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: One follow up, Chairman, and
CHAIR KANE: Proceed.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I heard you mention more than once, Kaunakakai project, Molokai
and that it had ... (inaudible) ... we funded it, we supported it, again. And construction
environment, things happen nowadays. Insufficient funding. Am I mistaken? It this
supposed to be part of this project list or not part of this project list, since you guys
mentioned it more than once, the Kaunakakai project? I just want to know whether it's
going to be part of this consideration or not.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Yeah, initially, it wasn't part of the anticipated for the FY 'OS monies
because we assumed we were going in for the new monies and the, a lot of the projects
for the Consent Decree are identified. We have a program where we're investigating the
priority lines for ... we just had a recent one that identified I think the number one
priority lines. Lines that would have a very detrimental effect should they fail and we
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have a spill and that identifies a lot of the projects. There's a lot of smaller projects that
we possibly could throw into that, but we couldn't encumber the money given this short
time period. So the thought is, well, here we have Kaunakakai, which is a force main,
which transmits all of Kaunakakai's wastewater treatment from the one and only pump
station to the treatment plant. It's very near the shoreline area, so we just thought it'd be
easier to encumber it and ... (CHANGE TAPE) ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... Okay, I'm done, Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, Chairman, thank you very much. Thank you very
much for sharing that information on Kaunakakai. I just wanted to provide a comment.
Couple of years ago during the budget process, it was then-Budget Director Agsalog that
came to the Budget Committee and requested from Administration the $1 million due to
an emergency situation on Kaunakakai, Molokai, for the need to replace the existing
force main because of the emergency cited in case of breakage or whatever.
The Department's or the Administration's identification of a priority becomes real
questionable to say the least when that was almost what, two and a half, three years ago?
And I guess the emergency still exists. So, you know, when you talk to me about
priorities, I really doubt that, that sincerity because a priority that Administration came to
this body for, telling us that it needs to get done immediately, as a matter of fact it was
towards the ending part of the budget process, that just kind of like immediately reeks of,
you know, like being enabled to handle emergencies that you people claim as being
emergencies. Because if it was, that project would have been completed. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. Anybody else would like to be recognized? We have
the Division here. Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Just for the record, when do you anticipate completing the
force main for Kaunakakai?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Rollins?
MR. ROLLINS: Once we determine which funds we can use to fulfill the rest of the bid, we're
prepared to issue the notice to proceed while we're still working on the many permits that
are required due to the location near the stream that crosses near Kaunakakai. But we're,
we're ready to proceed in the near future and hope to finish some time next year.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
it? --184, OOO?

And haven't you just identified this additional--what is

MR. ROLLINS: I think we have, yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, that's on the record. I had another question,
Mr. Chairman, more general. Mr. Rollins, I thought I heard you say that should the
Wailuku-Kahului sewer treatment plan be relocated, that the current plant would be used
as a pump station. Is that correct?
MR. ROLLINS: Not the plant per se, but the property. The plant would then not be used, but
we'd have to construct a pump station at that site in order to convey the water to the new
site. All of the force mains that come from Kahului and Wailuku or the Paia area now
end up at that location, so it would make sense to take that central location and pump
from that location.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And is there anything in the EPA Consent Decree that
requires the County to relocate the plant?
MR. ROLLINS: No, I believe it's in the Community Plan.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so having a pump station there, should there, God
forbid, be a tsunami, would that pump station disable the whole system if it was
inundated with a tsunami?
MR. ROLLINS: A pump station can be more easily tsunami-proofed than the plant with all of
its tanks, et cetera. And we feel it could be set inland, closer to the road there, rather than
most of the plant is, really adjacent to the shoreline. So we feel it could be
accommodated to be tsunami-proof, so to speak.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions or comments? Hearing none, Members, the
Chair's recommendation is to move forward and ask for your approval of the revised bill
that makes the adjustment regarding the Central Maui Land Acquisition number for
1.2 million back to 500,000 and a million dollars for the EPA and filing of said
communication.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Second.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, moved and seconded by Members Hokama and Pontanilla. We are in
discussion. Any further discussion, Members? Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I will be supportive of the recommendation you shared
with us this afternoon. And, again, with all respect to Mr. Ginoza and his short few
weeks with us as Budget Director, this is still the third, end of the third year of a
four-year administration. I expected a little better understanding in that in just a few
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months we'll have a brand new budget proposal to review, deliberate and make decisions
on. I hope all of these things are in some kind of coordinated fashion because when we
get to budget, I'm going to sharpen my teeth and I'm just going to have, you know, give
fair notice to the divisions and the department, better be on the ball and accurate with
their numbers because I don't appreciate on the 1t h month of an 18th month
appropriation this type of adjustments. And I hope they will give us a updated status
prior to us making any further consideration on this projects during the upcoming budget
review, Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further discussion, Members? The Chair will point out two
points relative to this issue. First point is to follow up on Mr. Hokama's comments that
in the Committee Report for the Fiscal Year '05 Budget, last term, it was clearly stated
within the Committee Report that the Committee, the Budget Committee of that term,
which was two years ago from now, about a year-and-a-half ago, I should say, felt that
additional information was necessary to justify the bond authorization.
I'll also note that in past budgets the departments were given the flexibility to do
improvements Countywide as part of the Consent Decree. And I think Mr. Mateo just
pointed out an issue of why this body, starting from two years ago and moving to where
we are today, has asked to get more specific information regarding projects prior to
moving forward with bond authorizations because it's been a moving target and it has not
been right on target for us.
So the Chair will echo the sentiments of the, of our Chair and our Member from
Molokai's, on their comments, and we will continue to work together with Mr. Ginoza
and Administration to try and make sure that we have a clear picture of where we are and
where we're going and how much of the taxpayer dollar and the citizens' money we're
going to be spending for these projects that are necessary. So I want to thank you folks
all for your comments regarding this issue.
Members, any final comments? Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just one quick question for our Corporation Counsel. Can a
department encumber funds such as one of the requests we get, without having bond
authorization?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair? Departments should not be encumbering funds without
bond authorization.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So this $800,000 more or less of encumbrances, I don't understand,
then, Corporation Counsel.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Our Department was consulted about the issue when we
determined that funds had been encumbered prior to obtaining bond authorization. We
consulted with our Bond Counsel on the matter. We were told that because there was
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enough evidence that Council had intended to include these projects, it was in the budget
portion of the ordinance as well as the CIP ordinance, that there would not be a problem
as far as being able to, you know, float the bonds. There wouldn't be any adverse tax
consequences. We were advised that this bond authorization should come before Council
as soon as possible, so that's why we are here. But-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So the _ _ question that follows what you're sharing with us is,
with all the encumbrances, what if we chose not to, then, authorize the bond?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Then, the Department would need to look to other sources of
funding for these projects.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That would still be a legal encumbrance?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Well, it depends on what those other sources of funding are. But
that would be our first, I guess our first recommendation is to look for other sources of
funding that would be appropriate.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Which would mean, then, the General Fund advancement would be
out $800,000 from the advance? Since it's encumbered? We advance cash from General
Fund, as a practice, prior to the bond float--so would have taken out 800,000, not
knowing how we're going to pay it back. Would that be a good, accurate assessment on
our part?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Well, once those other sources of funds were identified, the
General Fund would be reimbursed. Similar to the way the bond funds would, I mean
the, yeah, the General Fund would have been reimbursed from the bond funds.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I just think there's a procedural problem with that, Chairman, that's
all.
KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Any final comments, Members, before we call for
the vote?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I get one.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Your last comment in regards to
being more accountable as far as how do we spend our monies, I think one of the things
that we should be doing is that having some quarterly discussions on, you know, where
we're at as far as our CIP projects. So that we, as Council Members as well as, you
know, various departments, you know, have them be accountable for the monies that are
being spent and being budget. And the only way I see that we can do it is probably
during Committee meetings or, you know, a venue like this. Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Any additional requests or comments on the motion
on the floor to accept the revised ordinance and file the said Communication 05-346?
Hearing none, all in favor signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: Opposed? Okay, let the record show it's unanimous with Members Carroll and
Tavares excused.

VOTE:

A YES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, Mateo, Molina, Pontanilla,
Vice-Chair Hokama, and Chair Kane.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Carroll and Tavares.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending FIRST READING of revised bill and FILING of
communication.

CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. DeLeon. Thank you, Mr. Miyamoto, Mr. Rollins. Members,
we're going to call a recess and we will reconvene at 3 o'clock. And, Members, if
Member Tavares can make it back, we'll go right into the item that we moved past. I
believe that was Item No.--excuse me--Item No. 50. If Member Tavares doesn't make it
back, then we'll go ahead and move into Item No. 49. We stand in recess until 3 o'clock
... (gavel) . ..

RECESS:

2:47p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:01 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel) . .. Okay, Members, we'd like to reconvene the Council's Budget
and Finance Committee meeting for Tuesday, November 15 th , I believe. Thank you.

ITEM NO. 49:

GRANT FUNDS FROM THE UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF
AGRICULTURE,
NATURAL
RESOURCES
CONSERVATION
SERVICE (NRCS); AND AMENDING FY 2006 BUDGET,
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND ENVIRONMENTAL
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MANAGEMENT (CONSTRUCTION AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT
OF THE LAHAINA WATERSHED FLOOD CONTROL PROJECT) (C.C. No. 05-305)

CHAIR KANE: Members, I direct your attention to the last item that's listed on your agenda,
Item No. 49, the grant funds from the United States Department of Agriculture, National
Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) and amending the Fiscal Year 2006 Budget,
Department of Public Works and Environmental Management, construction and
construction management of the Lahaina Watershed Flood Project, Flood Control Project.
Members, hang on one second. The Committee ... the Committee is in receipt of the
County Communication that's listed, 05-305, from the former Budget Director,
transmitting the following:
first, proposed resolution entitled, "Authorizing the
Acceptance of a Grant of Funds from the United States Department of Ag. for the
Construction and Construction Management of the Lahaina Watershed Flood Control
Project in the County of Maui", with the purpose of the proposed resolution to authorize
the acceptance of those grant funds.
Second, we have a proposed bill for an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year '06 Budget
for the County of Maui as it pertains to the Department of Public Works and
Environmental Management. And the purpose of the proposed bill is to add the United
States Department of Ag, Natural Resources Conservation Service grant in the amount of
$3.4 million for the construction and construction management of the Lahaina Watershed
Flood Control Project. And this is Appendix A, Members.
Just a note, Members, for your information, because what was submitted, and I don't
know and I'll check with staff if we received the revised bill. Mr. Taguchi, if you can
provide some comment, please, before I open the floor? And, Members, sorry for the-MR. TAGUCHI: Yes, Chair Kane, we received a revised proposed bill, which has been
distributed to you in Committee. It was brought down by the Budget Director.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you very much. Members, you should have a copy, on your desk,
of the revised bill. Let me just make sure we got it here. Okay. So the Chair, at this
point, will yield to, first, Mr. Ginoza. If you can provide some opening remarks and if
the Deputy of Public Works would like to provide some additional remarks? Then we'll
go from there.
MR. GINOZA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The Fiscal Year 2005 Budget included a appropriation
of a million dollars for the County's share of the Lahaina Watershed Flood Control
Project, which was pending the grant from the U.S. Department of Agriculture. The
initial bids on the project was, were much higher than expected, so the grant was
amended to approximately 3.4 million to accommodate the subsequent bid prices.
The contract was awarded in June of 2005, pending the acceptance of the grant by the
Council. The proposed amendment is to amend Fiscal Year 2006 Budget by adding the
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new grant called United States Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources
Conservation Service Grant in the amount of 3.4 million. And in addition to, in addition,
a resolution is proposed to authorize the acceptance of the grant, which is required to
consummate the contract that was awarded in June of 2005.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. Mr. Miyamoto, any additional opening remarks or some
background on the project or probably even a status? And that way, we can maybe avoid
any questions that you may be able to answer just in your opening remarks.
MR. MIYAMOTO: I have with me the project engineer from our Engineering Division. I'll let
him give a little short project status on the project.
MR. KRUEGER: I'm Joe Krueger from the Engineering Division. The Lahaina Watershed
Flood Control Project has been segregated into separate phases. We bid Phase lout in
March, and the cost was way over budget. So we changed the scope of work and cut
back on the project, and we re-bid it out in June. The, that's the first phase. So we're
now designing the second phase as we proceed. The, we'll probably bid that out next
year. So there will either be four or five phases for the total project.
The financing, the way it works out is the NRCS pays for the channel improvements, all
the new work. The County pays for the relocating of utilities, reconstruction of roads and
the road culverts under existing roads. That's how we break up the costs. Plus, we pay
for the land if there's land acquisition costs.
CHAIR KANE: That concludes your comments, Mr. Krueger?
MR. KRUEGER: Yes, and what we're here for is to appropriate the Federal funding portion of
the project. When we got the County portion, which we amended the existing budget, we
discussed the Federal funding. But what we forgot to do was appropriate the Federal
funding portion of the project.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, then, before I recognize Member Johnson as the Lahaina rep,
I'd like to welcome Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TA V ARES: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Good afternoon, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TA V ARES: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Johnson, you have the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I really appreciate, Joe, having this come forward because I
have had several inquiries and I've been curious myself. Originally, how many phases
were planned for this completion of the project?
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MR. KRUEGER: We estimated four phases.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. KRUEGER: '" (inaudible) ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And so, I mean I did a simple calculation and, you know, I'm
looking at $1.157 million in additional money that is different from what the original
proposal was. Was that all just due to construction costs increases or, you know, how the
bids came in, or were there other factors because of the delay?
MR. KRUEGER: No, it was mostly construction cost. The initial bid came in twice as much as
the money we had, but we cut back on the project and we re-bid it.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and, you know, what would be I guess the timeline is
what some of the individuals are concerned about in the community. Do you have, for
the completion, let's assume that everything goes through with this, what would the
timeline be for the completion of Phase I?
MR. KRUEGER: We estimate about a year and a half, but we'll start Phase II, we plan to do a
phase each year. So the phases will overlap as we go on construction, so the five phases,
maybe six, will take five to six years.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and has the entire project been pre-designed and
you're just doing the implementation, or are you doing design build with each specific
phase?
MR. KRUEGER: We have a preliminary design, which gave us a alignment. We're doing each
phase, a detailed design, as we go along. We just finished the first phase. We're in
design of the second phase now. We hope to be completed by March and bid out right
after that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, so, so what you're doing in essence is while you're
physically going to be under construction of one phase, then you would have already,
hopefully completed the design for the next phase and then just continuously roll that
out?
MR. KRUEGER: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Is there any reliance, particularly on the NRCS funds,
the U.S. Department of Agriculture? I just, I know that the funding sometimes at the
Federal level is not always secure. Do you have any feedback as to whether these funds
will be secure when we go forward with the next phases?
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MR. KRUEGER: The fact that we have started and they have encumbered their funds is a good
chance that the project will continue. Now, if we had not started anything or hadn't
encumbered any funds, there's a good chance that they would have not participated in the
project because they want to finish ongoing projects first. And ours is an ongoing
project.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, yeah.
MR. KRUEGER: They feel confident that it'll be funded as we go along.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'm relieved to hear that because I never count on the Federal
government for anything. So my final question, Mr. Chair, would be that with this now
proceeding in a phase, obviously there are things that were left out from the, you know,
you cut back on this project. What essentially would be accomplished then during this
first phase and what did you want to accomplish that you're not able to accomplish in this
reworked plan?
MR. KRUEGER: Our first phase, we wanted to put in the outlet and channel work up to Puunoa
Road-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. KRUEGER: The road that goes up to Puunoa Subdivision.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. KRUEGER: What we ended up bidding out was just mass grading without the channel
between the outlet and Puunoa Road, and we are installing the outlet and the culvert
crossing under the highway, Lower Honoapiilani Highway.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, so, and it is the State participating because these are
things that would involve a State right-of-way? Are they participating at any level in
this?
MR. KRUEGER: No.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And why is that?
MR. KRUEGER: Because it's a County project, sponsored ... well, project sponsored by the
County in conjunction with West Maui Soil and Conservation District and NRCS. The
three entities involved. So the State will not or is not a part of the project.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and even though it goes under the highway, is that
going to pose any kind of a complication with regard to the County working, you know,
on what essentially is State property?
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MR. KRUEGER: We'll have to get a State highway permit to perform work. We plan on
actually closing the road and putting in a detour road while we work under the road.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, I look forward to that. All right, thank you very much,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE:
Thank you,
Member Pontanilla.

Member Johnson.

Member Anderson, followed

by

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And the detour road would be the cane haul road?
MR. KRUEGER: No, we're also putting in a detour road for the cane haul road. We're putting
in two detour roads--one for the highway and one for the cane haul road.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And they would be on-MR. KRUEGER: On the mauka.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Obviously, the mauka side on Puunoa property?
MR. KRUEGER: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and you said you were going to be doing mass
grading there, so, well, I'll leave the details to you. This portion of the project that you're
cutting back, the culvert, you're still doing the mass grading, and why do you need to do
the mass grading there if you're not going to go ahead and put in the culvert and all those
other things that you mentioned?
MR. KRUEGER: We're putting in the culvert under the highway, and right after, just before the
highway, we're putting in a concrete basin, a debris basin. From there to Puunoa, we're
not digging out the channel yet, but we're doing the grading to get the ultimate
right-of-ways completed. Then the next phase, what we'll do is we'll continue digging
the channel out, putting culverts under Puunoa Road and do the debris basin in Kauaula
Stream itself.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: In the stream?
MR. KRUEGER: Right. When we, our flood control channel crosses Kauaula Street, and what
we're doing is we're separating the flows in Kauaula Stream and our flood control
project. So we have water coming down from Kauaula Stream, we have the flood control
channel coming into it, and we're building this huge basin, and we're separating the two,
well, it'll be in one debris basin. And most of the, the first waters will go towards the
flood control because that outlet into the flood control would be lower than the outlet into
Kauaula Stream that goes towards Puamana. So when the water, as the water in the
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debris basin comes out, it'll empty out into the flood control, and some of it will empty
out down to Puamana, and then as it gets higher, most of it will go towards the flood
control. So the water is separated from that, in that debris basin. We have to build a
huge structure, pick up the water and then send it on through. One through the flood
control and one through Puamana.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Stream?

Are you talking about a concrete basin within Kauaula

MR. KRUEGER: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Was this in your original EIS, Mr. Krueger?
MR. KRUEGER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It was. So there's no design change from what is in the
EIS?
MR. KRUEGER: Correct. The EIS gave just a, gave the general alignment and what materials
and how it was going to build, what, where. The ... (inaudible) ... grass channel. We
had a concrete channel in certain, couple places, and it did describe the debris basin
generally in Kauaula Stream. Now we're doing the detailed design to show the
elevations and how thick the walls are and how big it actually is.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Because I've read that EIS, and I don't recall a concrete
basin within the stream that ... is that different now?
MR. KRUEGER: No we always planned to put, we needed something to separate the water, to
control the water from going into Puamana and going down our channel. And the best
and easiest way to do it was to put in a concrete structure.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So whatever you're cutting back on this phase, you're
going to pick up in the next phase?
MR. KRUEGER: Correct. That's the idea.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You're not deleting anything?
MR. KRUEGER: That's the idea.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. KRUEGER: Hopefully, we can do that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Mr. Krueger.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. As Mr. Krueger had stated, there's
five phases. I was wondering if Mr. Krueger can give us the different phases, you know,
of the project.
MR. KRUEGER: Off the top of my head, the first phase what we bid out to put part of the
channel and the debris basin and the culvert under Honoapiilani Highway. The next
phase, we'll dig out the channel to Kauaula Stream and install a debris basin at Kauaula
Stream. That'll be the second phase. The third phase will be continue the channel up
above the Wainee Village project. That may, may take us two phases. And then the next
phase is to go through ... (CHANGE TAPE) ... up to Lahainaluna Road and that may
take two phases too.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. And presently how do we control the water
from coming down the mountain over H'piilani into, onto Front Street and to the ocean?
MR. KRUEGER: We, that means West Maui Soil and Conservation District, Maui Land and
Pine, have constructed a temporary diversion ditch above the town, about where we're
building our flood control. I think it's a little higher maybe. And it, it works pretty good.
I think it was last year, we had two storms in a row. It worked on the first storm and
before we could go back and repair the damage, the second storm hit and that's where we
had some flooding last year. If you remember some people filed some claims. And we
have since repaired it, okay. Now what we have to do is stay on top of it, but when it's
all muddy and you have to wait until it dries out a little bit before you go in and repair it.
But it'll work for the first storm. It'll, it's a good diversion ditch. It's a temporary
diversion ditch.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: And who pays for the maintenance of that?
MR. KRUEGER: It's a cost sharing thing. West Maui Soil and Conservation Service will do
the inspection and keep an eye on it. Maui Land and Pine will loan some equipment. We
will loan some equipment, and we will, we'll try to work together to maintain that.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Mr. Krueger, you know with regards
to the work I guess you're going to have to do underneath the highway, you folks have
already set aside enough funding where if you, they have to do work at night. Because
I'm just sort of concerned about the, you know, we all know about the traffic situation in
Lahaina. Have you folks take that into consideration having them do night work, or is
this going to be day work? Do you have any idea at this point?
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MR. KRUEGER: Since we're installing a detour road, it doesn't really matter.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, okay.
MR. KRUEGER: So we're hoping not to affect traffic. Of course, you always have
rubbernecks, people will slow down to see what we're doing. But the two lanes will be
open at all times.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, okay.
MR. KRUEGER: And at night, we hope to have overhead lights to let them know what's
coming up ahead. And I think after a while people get used to it, they won't slow down.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And about roughly, how long will this construction, I guess
the detour road-MR. KRUEGER: About a year.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: One year on the road?
MR. KRUEGER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Quickly, Chairman. I just trying to, you know, going through the
material, try and make some sense of the dates. What is your understanding, either
Mr. Miyamoto or Mr. Krueger, the effective date after which a fully executed document
by all parties were signed?
MR. KRUEGER: You mean, to meet the date requirement that set off, that is set up in the
agreement?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
MR. KRUEGER: Okay, the date required was before June 20, 2005 to award contract.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. KRUEGER: The bid opening was like June 1st •
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.

- 36 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

November 15, 2005

MR. KRUEGER: Then, we wrote a letter saying we're going to award the contract to you
pending execution of contract. And NRCS accepted that as award of contract.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, and that's what I wanted to hear because there's another
portion in the agreement that unless you have that executed contract within 90 days,
NCRS [sic} will terminate the agreement. And I was just concerned that I would hate for
us to move forward and lose Federal funds because the deadlines or the time elapse was
more than what was granted to us in our agreements. So as far as you can verify for us
this afternoon, that is not even a point for us to be concerned about, Mr. Krueger?
MR. KRUEGER: Correct. I just talked to the Manager at the NRCS office on Oahu, and I gave
him a status and he said, okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Okay. I hope he'll put that in writing for you so that you can
have some written documentation to support the County's position. Other than that, my
only question is, what we see now around or about Circle K, is that part of one of the
phases of this project, toward the mauka side?
MR. KRUEGER: I don't know ... (inaudible) ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: As we enter Lahaina?
MR. KRUEGER: I saw that. They were working on-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I see a lot of, yeah, grading and grubbing.
MR. KRUEGER: We're above that. We're way above that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: It's way further up?
MR. KRUEGER: Yes.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (inaudible) ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, that's another Public Works, but it's a Wastewater project.
Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, any further questions before the Chair gives his recommendation? I'm
sorry, Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, I just wanted some clarification because I had heard
that there were problems getting one landowner to agree to getting the land necessary for
right-of-way. Have you had any problems getting the right-of-way?
MR. KRUEGER: Not necessarily. We're just trying to follow the procedures.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Do you have to do condemnation for any of the land or are
property owners cooperating?
MR. KRUEGER: I don't, I don't, right now I don't believe so. What they're waiting for is a
appraisal before they sign a right-of-entry for us to go in and do our work.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The property owner is waiting for an appraisal?
MR. KRUEGER: Right, which we have already started.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so that isn't part of this phase then, or is it?
MR. KRUEGER: The State?
CHAIR KANE: Phase.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: This-MR. KRUEGER: Oh, yeah, this'll be part of this phase. That's part of this phase. Phase I
includes, we have to get the right-of-entry yet.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
right-of-way?

When you say right-of-entry, does that mean buying a

MR. KRUEGER: Correct. What we'll do is we'll get an agreement with the landowner as to
what the price will be for buying the land to do our construction, permanent and
temporary construction easement. When we come to an agreement, then we'll do a
temporary right-of-entry document to allow us to do our work before we complete the
land transaction because that'll take six months to a year because we have to go through a
subdivision process to cut out the land.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I see. So the cost of the land is not included in this first
phase at all?
MR. KRUEGER: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Krueger. And one little question about the
fishies. Is this basin going to be in any way disruptive to the migration of the fish?
Kauaula Stream?
MR. KRUEGER: You mean when it's finalized?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.

- 38 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

November 15, 2005

MR. KRUEGER: No, it shouldn't.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Was that assessed in the EIS?
MR. KRUEGER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, the Chair's recommendation, if there are no other
questions or comments, is to move forward as a recommendation of this body the passage
of the revised proposed bill that you have received on your desk this afternoon, along
with the attached resolution that's attached to the September 29, '05 communication,
County Communication 05-305, by then Budget Director Sherri Morrison, as well as
filing the Communication, which is noted as 05-305.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Second.
CHAIR KANE: It's been moved and seconded by Members Johnson and Pontanilla. We are in
discussion. Any further discussion, Members?
Members, one note that the Chair will share with you as far as for your information--you
will note that the revision or the revised bill removes from the original bill that was
submitted, attached to the September 29 th County Communication letter, removes in the
original one on Page 1, letter G, State of Hawaii County Road Improvement grant of
$2 million. That wasn't there in the first place. It was anticipated because our previous
discussions, but based on the fact that we have not amended it by this body, it didn't
move forward to the Council for formal action because of the information we received
from the State Legislature, the letters of the intent, as well as the Mayor regarding the
intent and release of the grant monies. So that's what the revision is. If you've noted that
it has been completely removed, and so now letter G is, in fact, the USDA NRCS grant.
Okay, so, Members, I just wanted to make note of that change.
Ms. Anderson, we are in discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I apologize, but I do have one more
quick question that I wanted to ask.
CHAIR KANE: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Krueger, there is attached, the very last page under this
item, a CIP breakdown for the Lahaina Watershed Flood Control project. And it shows
land acquisition set aside in bond money from '05 to 2010 $200,000 each year for a total
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of $1,200,000.
project?

Is that what you anticipate the total cost of land acquisition for this

MR. KRUEGER: Basically, yes. I'm making a, I'm making a guess on this. That's the best I
could do.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So it's likely that you'll be coming back for an increase
maybe once this appraisal is done?
MR. KRUEGER: Correct. Correct, but I won't need that till July.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Can you give us a ball park guess? Over 200,000?
MR. KRUEGER: Well, I think that's about what it'll be.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, really?
MR. KRUEGER: That's what I believe.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, great. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further discussion on the bill, the resolution and the filing?
That's the motion on the floor. Hearing none, all in favor signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: Opposed? Let the record show it's unanimous with Member Carroll excused
from the vote.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, Mateo, Molina, Pontanilla,
Tavares, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Chair Kane.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmember Carroll.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending ADOPTION of resolution, FIRST READING of
revised bill, and FILING of communication.
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CHAIR KANE: Mr. Miyamoto, Mr. Krueger, thank you very much for your presence this
afternoon. It's appreciated.

ITEM NO. SO:

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR MEDICARE PART D
DRUG PLAN SUBSIDIES (C.c. No. 05-306)

CHAIR KANE: Members, we are on to our final item. And, Member Tavares, we took your
request to hold up on that particular item, so we'll let you go duke it out with the Deputy
and the Director of Finance who have been here patiently waiting for their opportunity to
speak on this item.
Members, I will direct your attention to the final item of our agenda for this afternoon.
We have Budget Item, Budget and Finance Item No. 50, Intergovernmental Agreement
for the Medicare Part D Drug Plan Subsidies.
Members, the Committee is in receipt of County Communication 05-306 from the
Director of Finance, transmitting a proposed bill entitled, "A Bill for an Ordinance
Authorizing the Mayor of the County of Maui to Enter into an Intergovernmental
Agreement with the State of Hawaii for the Medicare Part D Drug Plan Subsidies".
Purpose of the proposed bill is to authorize the Mayor to enter into an Intergovernmental
Agreement with the State of Hawaii for the Medicare Part D Drug Plan subsidies.
Members, the proposed bill, as a note, authorizes the Mayor to enter into that
Intergovernmental Agreement with the State so that the County may qualify for annual
Federal subsidies that encourage the continuation of current retiree drug plans.
The Director of Finance estimates that the County expects to receive a retiree drug
subsidy in the range of between $230,000 and $300,000 without affecting retirees' drug
benefits.
And, Members, the Committee also received correspondence dated November 1st of this
year from the Director of Finance of the State of Hawaii in regards to this item. So at this
time 1'd like to recognize, we have both our Director and Deputy Director of Finance-Mr. Kalbert Young and Mr. Wayne Fujita. Director Young, you are recognized.
MR. YOUNG: Thank you very much, Mr. Chair and Members. Just to make clear, the purpose
of this subsidy, as many of you may already be aware, the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services--that's the department that manages the Medicare or Medicaid program
for the Federal government--has spent the last several years developing a much more
comprehensive drug plan for its, you know, that'll be offered as part of the Medicare
program.
This program is now called Medicare Part D, and today, November 15, is the first day of
which members of the public who wish to subscribe to this plan can file with the Federal
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government their intent that they desire to participate in this plan that will take effect on
January 1, 2006.
Now, in advance of this program, the, the Medicare Part D is, essentially, a drug, for drug
and prescription coverage for senior citizens or disabled, handicapped people that qualify
under Medicare. As part of this program, the Federal government has evaluated that the
retirement plan that the County of Maui and other employees in the State of Hawaii that
participate as part of their retirement program has drug rider coverage that are either as
beneficial as the Medicare Part D program that will be offered or excessively better than
the Medicare Part D plan.
As such, the Federal government has offered, through this subsidy program, an
opportunity for jurisdictions to receive, in the form of a subsidy, a portion of the cost.
And that's what is before you today. And the State of Hawaii and the jurisdictions of the
counties have filed an application, or the State has filed, on behalf of the counties, to seek
this subsidy. The County of Maui will be participating or seeks to participate as part of
the State's application in which every retiree that maintain, that stays on the existing
retirement program for the County of Maui, the County will receive a subsidy for that
particular individual. You may think of it as a way of reimbursing the County for the
cost of providing our retirement program prescription drug rider.
We estimate that this would be an amount equal to somewhere in the range of about 230
to $300,000 that the County would be looking to get in the form of this subsidy.
Mr. Wayne Fujita, the Deputy Director of Finance has been the point person in
discussions with the State, in coordinating the State's application as well as the County of
Maui's portion and in discussions with how we will go about getting the funds, the
subsidy portions--as this application will be submitted in its entirety for all the counties
under one application, that being the State.
At this time, Mr. Fujita and I are available for any questions. I, at the Chair's desire, I
offer Mr. Fujita, if he has any opening remarks.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Fujita, any additional opening comments?
MR. FUJITA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The program sponsored by Medicare starts from
January 1st , and the State is managing the retirees' drug plans currently through the
processing of the EUTF. The structure of this plan is that the EUTF will continue the
same kind of benefits so that the retirees will not experience any change. As far as this
transaction with the Federal government, there will be monthly reports that is provided
directly from the EUTF and to Medicare. Then those reports would be reviewed, and
then a subsidy check would be sent to the County each month. And this amount would
be dependent on the actual amounts of claims that are sent in by the retirees. We're
expecting, currently, about maybe 20,000 a month in this type of subsidy checks.
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The State has sent in their application on September the 30 , and this, this bill that's
before you is, first, to attain the Council's approval to participate on the start of the plan
at January 1st. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, we're open for questions or comments. Member Tavares, I'll
provide you with an opportunity to open the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER TA V ARES: Thank you for postponing the discussion on this particular
item, and I apologize to the Department who had to wait a little bit longer.
Your explanation, I think, cleared up some things for me already that I was going to ask
about. But I, I refer to the, the letter that's November 1st, attached to the memorandum
agreement from Ms. Kawamura from the State Finance Department. And in the second
paragraph, the last sentence refers to, it reads, "To qualify for the subsidy, applications
must be submitted to CMS by October 31 st . . . " And this kind, you know, on and on. So
does that mean that the Department, our Department submits this request? I mean these
applications or how does that work with notifying the retirees about the program, and is
there a way that they can double check to see that they got responses from people who
may qualify?
MR. FUJITA: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Fujita?
MR. FUJITA: All the paperwork and the communications are being done directly from the State
EUTF.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: To each retiree?
MR. FUJITA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. FUJITA: And as far as we know, there won't be any real, any real changes from now and
January. But, the State's plan is a very good plan.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. FUJITA: Because all the premiums are paid by the employer, which is stronger than what
is being asked for from the Medicaid Part D program. So that's why the Federal
government is providing this subsidy-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. FUJITA: --because the State's plan is much stronger. It provides a lot more benefits.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So there wasn't any particular reason why any of our retirees
would have sent in an application?
MR. FUJITA: No. I think the position of the EUTF, because we sat with them in a retirement
meeting last week, they were saying that the State wants its retirees to stay with their
plan.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. FUJITA: There's some discussions from some of the other providers that maybe the
retirees should consider stopping their participation with the State plan and join some
other plan. But we don't think that the retirees will really get a benefit by doing that. In
fact, they'll probably be having to pay more premiums.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. FUJITA: Because I've heard that some of the providers are kind of using like a fear factor
saying that if you don't join and make a decision by a certain date, like in March-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. FUJITA: --that should the retirees decide later on, maybe they want to join another plan,
there might be a penalty. But that's kind of deceptive I think because the key is that the
State's plan is totally free, so you wouldn't want to switch out of the State plan.
COUNCILMEMBER TA V ARES: Uh-huh.
MR. FUJITA: So I hope that answers the question.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, I'm just concerned because I, because I'm getting to
that age, I happen to know a lot of retirees. I'm soon to be one of them, maybe. But I
wonder if, you know, some of them are just looking at this as another government
bureaucratic kind of communication and not even paying attention to it. And, you know,
I'll ask if they even remember what it looked like or what did they do with it, and, if
anything. So it was just a, you know, inquiring. I feel a lot better now that you've
explained a little bit more about the plan so that if they did happen to throw it in the trash
by mistake or thinking it was just another thing, that they really haven't hurt themselves
because the State plan is so great.
MR. FUJITA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, thank you for that. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Mr. Hokama?
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, did we receive any communication of any sort from either
HGEA, UPW, those that represent our employees and our retirees-CHAIR KANE: Um-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --as their collective bargaining agents?
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. The Chair anticipated that question, and so instructed staff to
contact the various union representatives. And we have received back word from at least
one of them. And I would like to defer the microphone to Mr. Taguchi, who did that
legwork, and provide you with a formal response, Mr. Hokama. Mr. Taguchi?
MR. TAGUCHI: Thank you, Chair Kane. We communicated with Alton Watanabe, Watanabe
at the HGEA office here, and he researched the matter. And he called back yesterday, I
believe, and indicated that it would, the bill, the plan as proposed, from his
understanding, would not affect the retirees in terms of the services that are currently
provided to them.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR KANE: Please, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And hopefully our department representatives might be able to give
me a response. Isn't this new proposal that Congress or the Federal government is
providing our employees, have a component whereby after they reach a certain amount,
that they're required to pay a full amount 'til they reach the next trigger and then benefits
kick in again? So there will be a time when our retirees will pay the full bill. And are
they aware of this?
MR. YOUNG: Mr. Hokama, you're talking about the Medicare Part D program?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's correct.
MR. YOUNG: Yeah, there's, there's several drug coverage options that are available in
Medicare Part D. The base plan, though, I believe the drug coverage is covered-Mr. Fujita probably may know better--oh, here. Medicare will cover 75 percent up to
200, $2,250, and then after that, there's a, there's a, I think there's no coverage up until
5,100. And then after that it's, it's 100 percent, right? One hundred percent? Yeah, after
5,100, it's 100 percent, yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And that's under whose plan?
MR. YOUNG: That's the Medicare Part D base plan.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, but it gets adjusted whether or not our employees opt ...
HMSA or Kaiser medical or they pick another health plan that provides drug coverage.
So I know there's some variations. but I hope it's clear that there comes a point in this
new program where our retirees pay the whole bill basically.
MR. YOUNG: Well. only if our retirees-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Over that first cap.
MR. YOUNG: Well. only if our retirees get out of the State plan and jump over to Medicare
Part D.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Our plan-MR. YOUNG: The State coverage that's provided through retirement is actually far more
beneficial to the retirees than this Medicare Part D program.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So. in actuality. what you're sharing with us. is that the Federal
government is telling us or willing to pay us to stay with a plan that is better than theirs
because they're not willing to pay for the program otherwise for our retirees? So they're
telling us to keep our retirees and don't enter their program?
MR. YOUNG: Essentially, you could look at it that way. That's the purp ...• the purpose of the
subsidy. as I see it very informally, is that we would get this subsidy or qualify for this
subsidy because our program that we offer privately or as our employer for our
jurisdiction is better than Medicare Part D.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And this is only offered to the government employee, retirees?
MR. YOUNG: Right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: If I was a retired sugar cane worker or a retired school teacher, I do
not get this benefits? But I don't know about school teacher. Maybe that was a bad. bad
example, but I'm an electrician. Private sector electrician. Union electrician.
MR. YOUNG: Um-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I don't have that benefit?
MR. YOUNG: To apply for this subsidy. I'm not sure if they·re. to what extent the subsidy is
offered, but I believe it is only offered. well. we·re. the County of Maui will be qualifying
to applying for this subsidy under. under jurisdiction of a government. governmental
entity.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. What is our legal definition ... (inaudible) ... of a retiree?
One who is, has been on full time, full equivalent position status or would this cover, I
don't know if we have such a thing as a part-time retiree. A retiree that was earned off
part-time status. Does it make a difference or do we even have those retirees?
MR. YOUNG: Well, the Director of Personnel Services I see in the gallery. I don't know if she
has like a, like an official definition of a retiree. I guess my definition would only be
from just the common, you know, understanding of what a retiree--over age 65 with,
fulfilling a certain number of credited years of service, et cetera. But I'm not sure if
there's a more formal definition of retiree, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, my point is we just need to get people as best informed as we
can and that's why this is helping me because I thought our employees also would have
that gap, as I understood Medicare Part D, which the private sector people need to deal
with. There comes a point where they're naked with no coverage basically until they
reach the next qualifying step. And I just need people to have an understanding that
unless they get one plan like what's being offered the County, they're going to be half,
well, they're not going to be half, they going be fully naked to full cost of required
prescription medication for their daily existence. And they need to be aware of that and
budget accordingly. So is that a good understanding on our part? Only our employees,
government retirees get this special consideration and subsidy?
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Mr. Hokama, to be clear, the retirees ... (CHANGE TAPE) ... will not be
receiving the subsidy. Subsidy will be coming to the employer. That's the County, so-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct, that's us.
MR. YOUNG: There won't be any, unless there's plans to do something with what we get these
funds, the retirees/employees will not see really any benefit or detriment to their plan or
their coverage or their premium.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: One more question, Mr. Director. Under this, help us understand
that the amount that EUTF would subtract for administrative costs--because I noticed
each county is slightly different, if I read my numbers right--is this a fair formula? Is the
County, you know, receiving adequate and fair consideration to all the other parties
involved, and is this financially sound for the retiree who's actually going to have to pay
for it? Not the County.
MR. FUJITA: The allocation formula is based on the number of participants and is, it is a fair
allocation of the cost. The County's share for one year is about $1,500, and that would
be added on to the amount that the employer pays on the premium. So, again, it wouldn't
affect the beneficiaries. It's a small amount in comparison with the amount we're
expecting from the subsidy, which is closer to a quarter million. So it's a good price.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: The only reason I bring it up, Mr. Fujita, is that basically, as I
understand it, the County does all the work. The County needs to provide all this
information. You mean, EUTF, because unless we authorize EUTF to access our
confidential data-MR. FUJITA: No, no. It's EUTF's data.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: It's EUTF's data?
MR. FUJITA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Because I was asked to sign off a sheet to allow them to access our
employees' confidential information.
MR. FUJITA: That's correct. That information belongs to us, but they manage it and they
maintain it. It is the information on the employees of the County of Maui, so in that
sense, it's-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .,. (inaudible) ...
MR. FUJITA: That's correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: What was that? You need to share that with us.
MR. YOUNG: Mr. Hokama, your approval was our auth ... , the County's authorization for
EUTF to distribute the information. They already have possession of the information, but
it's a matter of their ability to put the information into the application packet so that it can
be distributed to, you know, another entity.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So there's no way the County of Maui can see if we can get a better
deal by ourselves, then? And even if we could, we couldn't exercise that option. Is that
what I'm being told?
MR. FUJITA: That's apparently correct because the files and the maintenance of all this
information is done by the EUTF. It's really what they do. The County does not
maintain any of that information.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But the information belongs to the County?
MR. FUJITA: Right, it's on our employees. Yeah.
MR. YOUNG: And, Mr. Hokama, on your question, the County could have filed its own
application for the subsidy, but, frankly, the County was not aware of this program. It
was brought to the County's attention by the State and in evaluating whether or not, you
know, we could independently file for this application, the deadlines were of
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consideration. They were rather short at the time that we became aware of it. And also if
you look at this administrative cost allocation, for basically, for about $1,500, we'll be
looking at collecting subsidy in excess of 200,000.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And covering over 2,000 employees?
MR. YOUNG: Yeah, and, you know, my, my assessment is that for $1,500 we couldn't pay for
better consulting services to file this application on our behalf, nor could we get the
expertise in-house to do a full application for 1,500. So I do believe the County is getting
a good deal even if we do have to pay a part of the administrative cost. It is what I
consider nominal.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. My last question is, I am hoping you'll work with the
collective bargaining agents so that our retirees are fully ... of what is transpiring and
that there is no negative impact on their pocketbooks. Because, like I said again, my
understanding of Medicare Part D is that there's this gap, and regardless, it would have
impact anyone who buys prescription drugs. I'm glad you made that more clear for us
this afternoon.
MR. YOUNG: Yeah, I'm sure that there might be instances, individual circumstances where a
retiree or an employee may find Medicare Part D more beneficial, but from my
understanding, the State's understanding and from my review of the program, I would
say the majority of retirees would be far more beneficial if they were to stay in the State,
in their existing program. We provide a very good benefit to our retirees in our existing
programs.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So whether you had a $50 a month average prescription drug bill or
a $500 prescription drug bill a month for your requirements, the, you still get the same
benefit?
MR. YOUNG: We would have to look at, you know, what exactly is the, what is your benefit
under the existing State plan as opposed to, say, under the Medicare Part D plan. Again,
it might, there might be a situation out there for an individual circumstance what you,
you'd have more beneficial even to go under Medicare Part D, even if there is that gap.
But, you know, the majority of employees would be far more beneficially served under
the, their existing plan.
VICE CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Young. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE:
Member Johnson, before I recognize you and thank you for your
patience--Members, the acronym "EUTF" was used quite frequently in the discussion.
So just for the information of yourself as well as anybody viewing this meeting, "EUTF"
are the letters E-U-T-F and that stands for Hawaii Employer-Union Health Benefits Trust
Fund. EUTF. So, anyway, just for information. Ms. Johnson, you have the floor.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, and, you know, because I am your representative also
for the Council on Aging and because I used to be a former health insurance agent, I've
been very aware and I've been following the issue and Mr. Bert Scherfeling(?) who used
to be with AARP has been kind enough to engage in long lengthy conversations about the
topic.
The, I guess the confusion is coming in when the distribution was made of the materials
that were sent out as a part of the packet advising employees and retirees from both
EUTF, you know, our employer's association, and also the provider of the coverage,
whether you have Kaiser or HMSA. Whoever that entity is. What's happening is when
you read through the benefit packet--and, believe me, I can read a policy contract--it's
still states within the body of that contract and with the materials that I received and I
went through at great length. It does state exactly what Council member Hokama had
mentioned, which it states very clearly, there'll be no change in benefit. However, when
you read on a little bit further, it does come into this gap situation.
So I think it's within the body of the materials that were disseminated that the confusion
is coming up because I have spent many hours on the phone between Kaiser, the
Customer Service for, you know, the employer's representative, and basically I was
assured, no, if you are a retiree or you're a dependent who is covered under, let's say it's
Senior Advantage for Kaiser, you will not have any change in your benefits because the
EUTF at this point has not elected to make any change in the benefit packet, and it's due,
in part, to the incentive that's been provided, which is provided to any group who is given
a richer plan of benefits than what is being offered underneath the Medicare Part D
coverage. But what it states also is that that is only good until I believe it's the open
enrollment period, which comes up in May of 2006. At that time the employer would,
again, have to make a determination as to whether they're going to stay with that package
of benefits or opt out.
What people have to be aware of is that they need to make a very, very careful decision
about what they do because when you opt out of your employer sponsored program--if
it's with the State or the County--you basically have, if, let's say you felt that you found a
better drug plan, whatever that might be, you are then automatically dis-enrolled from all
of your coverages with your current package of benefits. That is where I think a real
severe hazard exists because people that are not informed or think, you know, oh, I can
get my drugs less expensively from this particular program so they're wanting to use a
cafeteria plan and opt out, you're out. And that was specifically put in by the Federal
government that so that people would either stay where they are and get the package of
benefits which in most cases either equal to or superior to the Medicare Part D coverage.
Or, you know, they would just be out all together.
There have been many programs, there have been many articles, and I've read a lot of
them--some are better than others--but I think one of the things that was most confusing
is we've received so many materials and in, within those materials, it would give every
appearance, and the way that I read it is that my husband has very expensive drug bills.
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So when I calculated my drug expense out of pocket and the way that I read the change
because everything pretty much integrates with Medicare is that after about February 15,
we would then have to pay after the 2,250, which is basically just the total cost of your
drugs, you would then have to pay $3,600 out of your own pocket before the coverage
would begin to kick in again. This is what's being referred to as the gap.
So I think, what we, Mr. Chair, as a body should do is perhaps have someone come here,
you know, obviously today is not a good day for it, but to let our employees know and be
reassured that what does that part of the description of their policy, which it states right
on the face of this coverage change. It says, "changes that will take effect January 1,
2006 to your coverage. And to me that means there's a change coming.
If you read a little bit further, though, it says that your employer has elected not to make
any changes, but even with existing or current benefits, they restated all of the benefits
that existed, which in my husband's case was specific to Senior Advantage because he's
covered under the Medicare component.

That is so confusing when you read it because it's like, wow, I didn't know that I had all
these limits on my existing coverage. There's no definition. It would have been better if
they just said, look, don't get alarmed. Your coverage is going to stay as it is. Remain
calm. But right now, everyone is being, I think, really being concerned and in most cases
unnecessarily. It's creating confusion and conflict and with all due respect to our Federal
government, I really have serious concerns about the whole Part D, just from my
perspective as a taxpayer and in my capacity and my fiduciary responsibility as elected
official. There is a huge cost, which will eventually be born and even these give-backs
that we're looking at right now that are before us which are subsidies, guess who pays for
that? And it's not going to be the drug companies. If you're currently getting drugs free,
if you have other programs that you currently get drugs under, all of that is going to go
away. And now you will be compelled to come within one of these programs. This is a
huge windfall for drug companies, and that's what I don't like about this particular thing.
For, as far as our benefits go, I would like the reassurance from our representatives who
negotiated this to really come before us and maybe even conduct meetings, just how
we've done with the circuit breaker and other things, but at least conduct some open
meetings to reassure our employees who are covered under Medicare or their dependents,
as well as the retirees, exactly what they have now, what the changes are and that make
them aware that, yes, this is the way it is for right now. But every enrollment period, this
could change. And I'm really, you know, I thank you, Mr. Chair, for giving me a little bit
of extra time, but I think this is so critical for us as elected officials to really be clear
because it does impact our employees. It impacts our wallets because there may be some
people, there's another eligibility requirement. I don't believe it will affect our
employees directly, but there is an additional subsidy for people that have I believe it's
150 percent or below of the Federal poverty level where they will be eligible for
additional assistance. That subsidy, however, is an individual subsidy, which is not to be
confused with this subsidy that we're talking about now. But I just, you know, I would
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really hope that someone at some point could come and just reassure, not only all the
employees, but even someone such as myself who is reading that and who's perhaps
more knowledgeable, you know, than others might be at reading the policies. And I'm, if
I'm confused, I feel sorry for everyone else. So, thanks very much, Mr. Chair, for
allowing me to go on. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Members, Section 2.20.020, unless provided
authorization by ordinance, the Mayor cannot move forward without entering into the
Intergovernmental Agreement, which is what this bill for an ordinance is. The reason it's
posted today is because as we've been informed, the plan would start, I believe,
January 1. By passing it out today, and the Chair intends to move forward unless a
Member--Member Johnson, in your comments, I wanted to ask if you had any
reservations about us moving forward with the request. But by moving out of Committee
today, we have the opportunity to have two readings in the month of December, and that
way we'd be ready to go for January 1 of '06 to provide the subsidies to move forward.
So, hence, the time sensitivity of this issue, and that's why, among other things, this was
one of the items that we decided to have on today's agenda. So just some background as
to why we're here with this particular item.
And any additional comments,
Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, I have no problem with moving forward on this. My
point is for more information because of the controversy that has really erupted and the
confusion surrounding the whole issue. Not just for our employees, but for the general
public because there are going to be some people in our community who are adversely
impacted by this.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Johnson.
MR. YOUNG: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Young?
MR. YOUNG: Thank you. Those are very good points, Ms. Johnson and Mr. Hokama, which
you bring up, and I don't, and I'm not saying that I'm an expert on insurance benefits or
which plans. The item before you, Medicare Part D will be in effect January 1. The
County does not control that. You know, I have been assured that the retirement benefits
under EUTF will not change, so the status quo will remain. This item before you,
though, is just to present to you whether or not we would like to participate in garnering
some of the subsidy that's being offered. If we, if you don't pass this agreement, the
State will still file its application and the other counties will still, if they do also
participate, will still garner its share of the subsidy.
I'm only here today to encourage you that, you know, with the program moving forward,
regardless of what the County does, this is an opportunity for us to get an anticipate,
unanticipated $200,000 worth of additional funds. And I do take to heart that it is very
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complicated because until this issue came up, I personally was not, I couldn't tell you the
difference between Medicare or Medicaid and I probably still can't. And it sounds like
Ms. Johnson is the expert on insurance plans, and it is very complex, and I would not
imagine that any, anyone out there could figure it out for themselves. So I do take it to
heart that, yes, I do believe more information campaigns are needed and could be
beneficial. But that wouldn't be related to this particular item before you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Director. Members, if there are no other questions, the Chair just
has one question for clarity because I recognize and maybe I don't know, well, maybe it's
not a discrepancy. In the cover letter from you, Mr. Young and the Deputy Director
Mr. Fujita referenced it, the range of payments between 230,000 and 300,000, does not
coincide with Ms. Georgina Kawamura's estimate and she calls it on her Page 2 of her
November 1 letter to your Chair, Members, of an amount between 182,000 and 252,000.
Provide some clarity if you can, Director, on this, on these number discrepancies, dollar
amounts.
MR. YOUNG: Certainly. I don't know the specifics on, you know, why the, why the exact
difference, but the estimate that's provided in the September 28 correspondence was
based on our preliminary discussions with the State as well as the State's consultant, who
had done an actuarial review at that point in time. And this was at a point in time when
the applications were, preliminary applications were due shortly and they had only a short
period of time to basically review all of the participants for each of the counties and the
State. So that was an estimate that was provided.
I have to believe that between, you know, the late September and early November time
period that the State has had an opportunity to further refine their count, do a reevaluation
of current participants and provide an estimate of where a particular participant would be,
whether they would benefit by staying in the State plan or move to Medicare Part D. Or
whether they'd be a candidate for Medicare Part D because that would determine the
overall count.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. YOUNG: Needless to say that I believe the estimate would be somewhere in the low to
mid-low range of the 200,000.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much. Finally, this unanticipated subsidy from I guess the
Federal government, does this offset an existing expenditure from the County taxpayer
that will now be realized in some form, some other forms, whether it's a carryover or a
savings or anything like that? Can you give us some anticipation or clarify what impact it
has on our existing budget?
MR. YOUNG: Certainly, Mr. Chair. Right now there is, there is no plans that these funds
would be earmarked for any other allocation in this Fiscal Year. I would anticipate that
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they would be contributed to the General Fund and would go to build our carryover
savings amount.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much. Members, the Chair is prepared to provide you
with a recommendation. Without further questions or comments, the Chair proposes that
we pass the bill that has been submitted under Item 50 and filing the
Communication No. 05-306.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER TA V ARES: Second.
CHAIR KANE: It's been moved and seconded by Members Hokama and Tavares. Any
additional discussion, Members, on this item? Hearing none, all in favor signify by
saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: Opposed? Let the record show it's unanimous with Member Carroll excused.

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, Mateo, Molina, Pontanilla,
Tavares, Vice-Chair Hokama, and Chair Kane.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

VOTE:

EXC.:

Councilmember Carroll.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending FIRST READING of bill and FILING of
communication.

CHAIR KANE: Director Young, Deputy Director Fujita, Director Ginoza, thank you very much
for your presence this afternoon. Members, we have reached the end of our agenda.
Thank you very much. We anticipated it going a little longer than where we're at. It's
almost 4: 15 on a very heavy agenda this afternoon, so thank you for your participation.
This meeting for November 15, 2005 is adjourned ... (gavel) . ..

ADJOURN:

4:13 p.m.
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